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MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 
 

 
To:  Mayor and City Council Members 
From:  J. R. Pearson, Assistant City Manager 
Through: Erin Reinders, City Manager 
Date:  May 25, 2021 
Re: Resolution 2021-17 Authorizing the City Manager to Sign a Collective Bargaining 

Agreement Between the City of Unalaska and the Public Safety Employees 
Association for Represented Employees 

 

 
SUMMARY: On March 9, 2021, City Council met with staff in Executive Session for a pre-
negotiations meeting to discuss the upcoming CBA negotiations. Following CBA negotiations the 
week of April 5th, 2021, the tentative agreement between the Public Safety Employees Association 
(PSEA) and the City was brought before Council on April 12, 2021 in Executive Session for 
discussion. Following Council’s direction, staff discussed Council’s requests with PSEA and an 
updated draft tentative agreement was brought before Council in Executive Session on April 20, 
2021 and then again on April 27, 2021. The PSEA Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) was 
ratified by PSEA members on May 7, 2021. Staff recommends approval. 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTION: City Council approved the current collective bargaining 
agreement (CBA) with PSEA on April 10, 2018. City Council has discussed this PSEA CBA with 
staff in four Executive Sessions since March 9, 2021. March 9, 2021 included an Executive 
Session to discuss upcoming CBA negotiations. After the CBA negotiations the week of April 5, 
the tentative agreements were brought to Council for discussion on April 12, 2021. Then, following 
Council’s direction, updated tentative agreements were brought to Council in Executive Session 
on April 20 and April 27, 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND: PSEA represents the following Public Safety and Fire positions: Police 
Sergeants, Communication Sergeant, Corrections Sergeant, Fire Captains, Fire Fighters, 
Corrections Officers, Communications Officers, Police Officers, Animal Control Officer and DMV 
Agent. Every three (3) years, the City and PSEA enter contract negotiations to agree upon a 
collective bargaining agreement for a new three (3) year term. The City’s CBA with PSEA expires 
on June 30, 2021; therefore, the proposed CBA would be effective July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2024. PSEA and City Staff negotiated this CBA the week of April 5, 2021, with several discussions 
since then to address Council feedback and address follow up questions to finalize the CBA.  
 
DISCUSSION: In the attached PSEA CBA, changes were made to comply with Janus law, along 
with some administrative changes, additional bonuses were included for employee retention, and 
the wage scale was adjusted. No operational changes were made.  
 
The PSEA CBA brings parity to Police and Fire and Corrections and Communications, adds 6% 
Public Safety Wage Scale Adjustment to police positions and 3% Public Safety Wage Scale 
Adjustment to other DPS positions, and includes 2% COLA in the first year with annual merit 
increases. Years 2 & 3 have 3% Public Safety Wage Scale Adjustment and annual merit 
increases. An annual $3,500 bonus was included for long-term employees who have at least 13 
years in service. 
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The final CBA was developed in accordance with Council direction. The PSEA CBA was ratified 
by PSEA members on May 7, 2021, and signed on May 18, 2021. This ratified and signed 
document is included in the packet. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Council can approve or disapprove the resolution.  Disapproval would bring 
negotiations back to the drawing board and create uncertainty in how to proceed into the new 
fiscal year after the current CBA expires on June 30, 2021. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: As compared to if there was no COLA or wage scale adjustments 
in the PSEA CBA, this would increase estimated payroll costs from current FY22 draft budget by 
$197,884 in year one and $540,823 over the three year term of the CBA.  
 
The Operating Budget will be adjusted accordingly when the CBA is signed, but the FY22 budget 
would still meet Council’s Budget goals based on these numbers.   
 
LEGAL: Staff consulted with City Attorney who provided review of the current PSEA CBA with 
suggested sections and language modifications. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION: I move to adopt Resolution 2021-17. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS: City Council has discussed this CBA in several Executive 
Sessions, and Staff has proceeded in accordance with Council’s Direction. I support Staff’s 
recommendation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Ratified PSEA Collective Bargaining Agreement 
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